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1. Name of Property
(indicate preferred name)


  historic
Waring Tenant House (preferred)

other
R. Hyde House
2. Location 
   street and number
16400 River Airport Road


  

not for publication 

city, town
Brandywine


  

vicinity

county
Prince George's
3. Owner of Property
(give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name
Philip C. and Betty Y. Watson

street and number
17608 Croom Road
telephone
     

city, town
Brandywine
state
MD
zip code
20613
4. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc.
Prince George's Courthouse
liber
1598
folio
265

city, town
Upper Marlboro
tax map
168
tax parcel
28
tax ID number
04 0265330
5. Primary Location of Additional Data


  

 Contributing Resource in National Register District

 

  

 Contributing Resource in Local Historic District



  

 Determined Eligible for the National Register/Maryland Register



  

 Determined Ineligible for the National Register/Maryland Register

 

  

 Recorded by HABS/HAER



  

 Historic Structure Report or Research Report at MHT

 

X

 Other:

Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission, Prince George's County Planning Department








6. Classification

Category               Ownership         Current Function                                                Resource Count

  
district

  
public

  
agriculture

  
landscape






Contributing    

Noncontributing

X
building(s)

X
private

  
commerce/trade

  
recreation/culture

4


0

 buildings

  
structure 

  
both

  
defense

  
religion

    


    

 sites

  
site

X
domestic

  
social

    


    

 structures

  
object

  
education

  
transportation

    


    
   objects


  
funerary

  
work in progress

4


0

 Total


  
government

  
unknown


  
health care

  
vacant/not in use

  Number of Contributing Resources


  
industry

  
other:

previously listed in the Inventory





1


7. Description
Inventory No. PG: 86B-008


Condition


  

 excellent

  

 deteriorated


X

 good

  

 ruins


  

 fair

  

 altered


Prepare both a one paragraph summary and a comprehensive description of the resource and its various elements as it exists today.

The Waring Tenant House, located at 16400 River Airport Road in Brandywine, Maryland, is a vernacular dwelling with an I-house form enlarged by an ell and subsequent additions. Built c. 1875, the Waring Tenant House is sited on a 39.42-acre parcel east of the intersection of River Airport Road and Croom Road. The dwelling is located at the end of a circular dirt drive. This parcel features mature trees and shrubs throughout, as well as immature trees located along River Airport Road. A barn, garage, and shed are associated with the Waring Tenant House. This property was surveyed from the public right-of-way; access to this property was denied by the resident.

Dwelling
This two-story, three-bay vernacular dwelling has an I-house form with an ell and two additions. Based on its form and materials, it appears that this resource was constructed c. 1875 and was minimally influenced by the Gothic Revival style. The wood-frame structure is clad in German weatherboard siding with small wood corner boards. The side-gable roof has been covered with asphalt shingles. The roof has overhanging eaves, thin cornice returns, and a center-gable pediment on the façade (southeast elevation) that creates a cross-gable roof as it meets the ridge of the ell’s roof. A small, interior brick chimney with a corbeled cap pierces the ridge of the main block, directly behind the centered gable. The ell, on the north corner of the rear (northwest) elevation, has the same material treatment as the main block. Additionally, a central-interior brick chimney pierces the ridge of the ell. A one-story, wrap-around porch is located on the façade of the building and extends around the northeast (side) elevation of the main block and ell. This porch appears to be set on a concrete foundation. This wood-frame, screened-in porch is capped by a half-hip roof. Scrolled brackets have been applied to the interior of the porch. The roof has been covered with asphalt shingles and features overhanging eaves. The porch is accessed via small steps on the south side of the porch, through a wood-frame screened door.
Fenestration of this building consists of 2/2, double-hung, wood-sash windows. The window openings have narrow, square-edge wood surrounds and louvered shutters. The façade is pierced by two symmetrical window openings on the first and second stories. The principal entry opening on the façade was not visible from the public right-of-way. The front-gabled pediment at the center of the facade features a circular window opening that contains a fixed quatrefoil wood window with a narrow, square-edge wood surround. This window opening and the front-gable pediment, which is open, reflect the influences of the Gothic Revival style. The northeast and southwest (side) elevations of the main block each have a single window opening on the first and second stories. The northwest (rear) elevation of the main block is pierced by a window opening located in the westernmost bay of the second story. The ell, which appears to be original based on its form, fenestration, style and materials, is fenestrated with 2/2, double-hung, wood-sash window finished with narrow, square-edge wood surrounds and louvered shutters. This two-story, two-bay ell contains a window opening on the second story of the east (side) elevation. The rear elevation is fenestrated by two windows on the first and second stories. The southwest elevation contains two window openings on the second story. 
A small addition has been constructed off the rear elevation of the main block, southwest elevation of the ell. Based on its form and materials, it appears that this addition was constructed in the early twentieth century. This wood-frame addition is clad in wood weatherboard siding and capped by a half-hip roof covered with asphalt shingles. The southwest elevation contains a single-leaf, paneled wood door set in a narrow, square-edge wood surround in the southernmost bay. This entry opening is flanked by a 2/2, double-hung, wood-sash window set in narrow, square-edge wood surround. This addition has a shed-roof addition on the rear elevation. The addition, constructed c. 1920, extends beyond the rear elevation of the ell. This second addition is clad in wood weatherboard siding and has a shed roof covered with asphalt shingles. The southernmost bay on the southwest elevation of this second addition contains a 2/2, double-hung, wood-sash window with a square-edge wood surround and louvered wood shutters. The rear elevation, based on photographs taken during the 1985 on-site survey, contains two window openings. 

Barn 

This resource is located southwest of the dwelling. Based on its form and materials, it appears that the barn was constructed in the early twentieth century. The wood-frame structure is set on a concrete-pier foundation and clad in vertical wood boards. The front-gable roof is covered with corrugated metal, finished with small overhanging eaves and a boxed cornice. The façade (southeast elevation) features a large sliding wood door. The southernmost leaf of this door is not longer extant. Additionally, multiple pieces of the exterior cladding are no longer extant. It appears that this resource is currently vacant.
Garage
This one-story garage is located northwest of the dwelling, at the end of the circular drive. Based on its form and materials, it appears that this resource was constructed in the early twentieth century. This building most likely served as a barn/shed originally but was rehabilitated for use as a garage in the mid- to late twentieth century. The wood-frame structure is clad in vertical boards. The side-gable roof, covered with standing-seam metal, has narrow overhanging eaves. The façade (southeast elevation) contains a large opening, the doors of which were open at the time of the on-site survey and thus, not visible from the public right-of-way. The side and rear elevations were not visible from the public right-of-way.
Shed
This shed is located northeast of the dwelling. Based on its form and materials, it appears that this shed was constructed in the early twentieth century. This wood-frame structure is clad in vertical boards. The front-gabled roof is covered with standing-seam metal. The boxed cornice and overhanging eaves compliment this building. Fenestration was not visible from the public right-of-way.
Integrity

The Waring Tenant House retains a moderate level of integrity. The rear addition has affected, but not compromised, the building’s integrity of design as it is located on a secondary elevation and is visible from the public right-of-way. The dwelling retains its integrity of materials and workmanship as it has retains the German weatherboard siding and original 2/2, double-hung, wood-sash windows. The dwelling retains a moderate integrity of feeling, setting, and association due to the condition of the agricultural buildings associated with the property even though these agricultural activities have ceased. The building, located near a major north-south route in Prince George’s County, retains its integrity of location in a rural setting.
The barn retains a low level of integrity of materials, design, and workmanship as this resource was in a deteriorated state at the time of the 2008 on-site survey. Multiple planks of the exterior cladding are now missing. The barn has lost its integrity of feeling and association as it is no longer utilized for agricultural purposes and is vacant. The building maintains its integrity of location and setting, as it is still associated with the Waring Tenant House property. Overall, this resource maintains a low level of integrity. 
The garage retains a low level of integrity of design, materials, and workmanship. The building retains its integrity of feeling, setting, location, and association with the Waring Tenant House property; however, it is believed based on the form and materials that this building was originally constructed as a barn or agricultural shed. This resource retains an overall low level of integrity.

The shed retains a moderate level of integrity of design, materials, and workmanship. The building retains its integrity of feeling, setting, location, and association with the Waring Tenant House property. This resource maintains an overall moderate level of integrity.

Overall, the Waring Tenant House and associated outbuildings retain a moderate level of integrity.
8. Significance
   Inventory No. PG: 86B-008
Period






Areas of Significance




Check and justify below


  
1600-1699  

  
agriculture

  
economics

  
health/medicine

  
performing arts


  
1700-1799

  
archeology

  
education

  
industry

  
philosophy


X
1800-1899

X
architecture

  
engineering

  
invention

  
politics/government


  
1900-1999

  
art

  
entertainment/

  
landscape architecture

  
religion


  
2000-

  
commerce



  recreation

  
law

  
science






  
communications

  
ethnic heritage

  
literature

  
social history






  
community planning

  
exploration/

  
maritime history

  
transportation






  
conservation



 settlement

  
military

X
other:
Local History

  Specific dates
c. 1875


Architect/Builder

unknown

  Construction dates  
c. 1875



  Evaluation for:





  

 National Register


  
 Maryland Register



  


not evaluated


Prepare a one-paragraph summary statement of significance addressing applicable criteria, followed by a narrative discussion of the history of the resource and its context.  (For compliance projects, complete evaluation on a DOE Form – see manual.)

Statement of Significance
The Waring Tenant House was constructed c. 1875 at 16400 River Airport Road, near Naylor, Maryland. This wood-frame dwelling was constructed on a tract of land known as “Bald Eagle,” which was originally known as “Marsham’s Rest.” John H. Waring, a wealthy and locally prominent landowner, named the area “Bald Eagle” and most likely had the dwelling constructed during his ownership. The property was conveyed to Ida A. Watson in 1900 from her brother William E. Segar. This transaction began an unbroken line of Segar/Watson ownership that continues to the present day. This tenant house represents the gradual shift from large plantations supported by tenant farmers to smaller farming operations in post-Civil War Prince George’s County during the third quarter of the nineteenth century. Although the acreage associated with the dwelling has diminished greatly since the late nineteenth century and the associated outbuildings no longer appear to have agricultural uses, the Waring Tenant House retains sufficient integrity to convey its significance as a late-nineteenth-century vernacular building with an I-house form augmented by an ell and front-gable pediment influenced by the fashionable Gothic Revival style.
Historic context
The Waring Tenant House is located near Naylor, a community in the southeastern portion of Prince George’s County. Changes to the county’s economy that occurred from the end of the Civil War (1861-1865) to the turn of the twentieth century are still visible in the landscape of southern Prince George’s County. During this period, agriculture, while remaining the dominant form of livelihood, changed from a series of large plantations with supporting tenant farmers to numerous small farming operations.
 The Waring Tenant House, constructed for John H. Waring, is an excellent example of this transformation. 

John H. Waring, born in Nottingham on March 19, 1809, was the youngest son of John Waring and Elizabeth Margaret Bowie. Upon reaching his majority, he received the plantation devised to him by his grandfather. The tract consisted of 1,300 acres lying on the Patuxent River south of Nottingham and known as Marsham’s Rest. Waring changed the name to Bald Eagle.
 At the time of the 1860 U.S. Federal Census, Waring was documented as a planter with an accessed real estate value of $50,000 and a personal estate valued at $40,000.
 This was comparable to the neighboring planters of Nottingham, but substantially higher than the merchants and managers living in the area. Prior to the Civil War, Waring was residing with his eight children, ranging in age from five years old to twenty-five years old. A wealthy pro-Confederate planter and slave owner, Waring was targeted by the U.S. government and his property was confiscated prior to his imprisonment. His real estate was later returned to him after the war, but not his considerable personal property.

The Waring Tenant House was not documented on the 1861 Martenet’s Map; however, the dwelling appears on the 1878 Hopkins Atlas.
 This dwelling was not the primary house constructed on the property; rather, it was probably built, based on its size and date of construction, as a tenant house.
 Therefore, a c. 1875 date of construction can be given. Although it is known that Waring owned the property at the time the dwelling at 16400 River Airport Road was constructed, it not certain if he resided there. Previous documentation, specifically the 1985 MIHP form for the property, suggests Waring used the property as rental, leasing it to a tenant farmer. 
Priscilla Mackall Waring, the eldest child of John H. Waring, was born in 1835. At his death, Waring’s will divided a tract of land known as “Bald Eagle,” devising Lot #7 to Priscilla Waring. The property consisted of 45 acres.
 The 1880 U.S. Federal Census lists the unmarried Waring as the head of the household and “keeping house.”
 It has not been determined if Waring resided in the dwelling on River Airport Road, but it is suggested by the census records. The house, which is modest in size, was occupied by Waring, her brother, her sister and a niece in 1880. B. Contee Waring is listed in the census as a farmer, possibly working the 45-acre parcel for his sister. 

In 1900, Waring conveyed Lot #7 to William E. Segar of Prince George’s County, Maryland.
 Segar was a farm laborer born in Prince George’s County in 1866.
 Upon his death in 1928, Segar’s estate was divided and approximately 40 acres were willed to his sister, Ida Amelia Watson.
 Ida Amelia Segar was born in 1870. In 1893, she married William Henry Watson, a Maryland farmer. Together, the couple raised four children: William Harold, Clyde Edward, Myrtle Viola, and Ida Aleine Watson. Upon Ida Watson’s death in 1955, her will stipulated that the property known as “Bald Eagle” which consisted of approximately forty acres, should be divided amongst three of the children. Clyde Edward received a ½ undivided interest, and both Myrtle Viola and William Harold were conveyed an undivided ¼ interest.

Clyde Edward Watson, a farm laborer, was born in 1906 and married his wife, Thelma, in 1928.
 No information regarding William Harold Watson (born in 1903) could be located. Myrtle V. Watson Saunders (born in 1894) died in 1965 and her will stipulated that her ¼ undivided interest in “Bald Eagle” should be conveyed to her sister, Ida Aleine Watson, who was born in 1899.
 Ida Watson died in 1983 at 83 years of age and bequeathed her ¼ interest to Philip C. Watson, Sr., the son of her brother, Clyde.
 Watson was born in 1929 and married Betty Page Young in 1950.
 Watson gained additional ownership of the property when he purchased a ¼ interest from Hazel G. Watson in 1984
. In 1993, he was gifted his father’s ½ interest, thus gaining full title.
 In 1995, Philip C. Watson Sr. and Betty Y. Watson conveyed the property to their son, Philip C. Watson Jr., the current owner. The Waring Tenant House is currently not owner-occupied and is used as rental property.
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10. Geographical Data


  Acreage of surveyed property 

39.42



  Acreage of historical setting

1,300 



  Quadrangle name

Lower Marlboro


Quadrangle scale:   1:24,000











Verbal boundary description and justification

	The Waring Tenant House is located on a 39.82-acre parcel at 16400 River Airport Road, near Naylor, Maryland. The property, originally part of the “Bald Eagle” tract that was originally known as “Marsham’s Rest,” is bounded to the south by River Airport Road and to the west by Croom Road. The eastern line of the property extends north to south along the edge of a dense stand of mature trees. The northern boundary of the property run roughly southwest to northeast along an allee of mature trees. This property is associated with Parcel 28 as noted on Tax Map 168.
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Chain of Title
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Will













Will of John H. Waring. Division of tract of land, known as “Bald Eagle; Priscilla 
Mackall Waring devised Lot #7 consisting of 45.5 acres.
Deed 












Priscilla M. Waring to William E. Segar. (45.5 acres, known as Lot #7)

JB 11:558











August 4, 1900
Will 












Estate of William E. Segar devised to his sister, Ida Watson. (~ 40 acres)

WDT 1:584











April 17, 1928

Will 












Estate of Ida Amelia Watson (deceased November 5, 1955) devised to her daughter, 

WDA 1:231







Ida Aleine Watson, a life estate in the farm she inherited from her brother, William E. 

November 22, 1955


Seger; at the death of Ida the farm was to be divided ½ interest to son, Clyde E. Watson, 
¼ interest to daughter, Myrtle V. Ragin, and ¼ interest to son, William Harold Watson)

Admin











Estate of Myrtle V. Saunders (formerly Ragin) to Ida Aleine Watson ¼ undivided
30,969











interest in a parcel of land containing approximately 40 acres. (Myrtle V. Saunders died July 21, 1956






in 1965).
Will 












Estate of Ida Aleine Watson to Philip C. Watson, Sr. (1/4 undivided interest)
CMH 14:82











January 20, 1983

Deed 












Philip C. Watson, Sr. (Representative for the estate of Ida Aleine Watson) to Phillip C. 

NLP 5784:405






Watson, Sr.

October 26, 1983
Deed 












Hazel G. Watson to Philip C. Watson, Sr. (39.42 acres, grantor’s ¼ interest)

NLP 5916:674








June 4, 1984
Deed 













Philip C. Watson, Sr. to Philip C. Watson, Sr. and Betty Y. Watson. (39.42 acres,

NLP 5916:677







grantor’s ½ interest)
June 21, 1984
Deed 













Clyde E. Watson and Thelma O. Watson to Philip C. Watson, Sr. and Betty Y. June

VJ 8891:663








Watson.

June 30, 1993
Deed 













Philip C. Watson, Sr. and Betty Y. Watson to Philip C. Watson, Jr.

VJ 10030:506








February 20, 1995
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Photo: The Waring Tenant House, Brandywine, façade, looking northeast. (October 2008)
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Photo: The Waring Tenant House, Brandywine, façade, looking northwest. (October 2008)
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Photo: Outbuildings, Brandywine, looking north. (October 2008)
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Photo: Garage, Brandywine, looking north. (October 2008)

[image: image5.jpg]



Photo: Barn, Brandywine, looking northwest. (October 2008)
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